














 

 

 
268 WEST KENNETH ROAD 

 
GLENDALE 

 
 
Style:  Contemporary 
 
Year of Completion:  1950 
 
Original Building Permit:  #38302, issued by the City of Glendale on July 27, 1950 for a one-
story, four-room residence.  The house, to measure approximately 39.5 by 25 feet, would have a 
concrete-slab foundation, walls of redwood and plywood over a wood frame, a composition roof, 
and one brick chimney.   
 
A copy of this permit is attached. 
 
Cost to Build:  $9,000—a typical cost for a house of this size at the time. 
 
Architect:    A. Quincy Jones, one of the outstanding exponents of high-art modern style in the 
Los Angeles area.  Please see the attached biographical materials. 
 
Builder:   Edwin D. Peters, North Hollywood. 
 
First Owner:  Frank D. Webber, a teacher with the Los Angeles public schools, who shared the 
house with his wife Mary G. Webber. 
 
Frank Douglas Webber (1919-1992) was a California native.  By 1940 he was living with his 
parents and brother in Glendale where his father worked as an automobile supply salesman and 
his mother was a public school teacher.  Frank Webber later changed careers, serving as vice-
president of Time Realty, Inc.  He died in Orange County at the age of 72. 
 



2 
 

Other Building Permits:   The house has apparently remained virtually unchanged since 1950. 
 
A redwood fence was to be constructed for $100 in December 1950. 
 
A permit was issued in March 1951 for the construction of a swimming pool, to cost $1,000.  
The owner was to act as his own contractor.   
 
The sewer was re-piped in January 1998. 
 
In March 1998, the house was re-roofed with Class A fiberglass materials. The cost was 
estimated at $1,492. 
 
Copies of some of these permits are attached.   
 
(Note: Permits for very minor alterations, such as water heater replacement, are not included.  
Also not included are permits missing from the file or whose microfilmed or digital copies are 
indecipherable and not otherwise recorded or described in Assessor’s records.)    
 
Assessor’s Records:  The Los Angeles County Assessor first visited the property on January 15, 
1951 and recorded a newly-completed single one-story “modern” residence and carport. The 
Assessor questioned whether the house was a “pre-fab.”  It had a concrete foundation, walls of 
vertical redwood siding over a wood frame, a gabled roof covered in gravel, and wood trim.  
Heat was provided by a fireplace, a blower furnace, and an electric wall heater.  There were 
seven plumbing fixtures.  Plaster and ply-board were the primary interior finishes.  Ceilings were 
exposed-beam and all partitions were plywood.   
 
The Assessor estimated the square footage at 975.  The house contained an entrance hall, a 
combined living room/dining room, two bedrooms, one bathroom with Coralite walls, and a 
kitchen with Formica drain-boards.  Floors in the hall, bathroom and kitchen were covered in 
cork.  The Assessor commented that there was “lots of plate glass” along exterior walls.  The 
carport, measuring approximately 20 by 22 feet, had open walls and a flat gravel roof.  A storage 
area ran across the entire width.  The carport was separated from the house by an open unpaved 
court of identical dimensions, surrounded by a six-to-seven-foot redwood fence.   
 
The Assessor returned on October 26, 1951 to note the completion of a 512-square-foot 
swimming pool of the “inverted dome” type.   
 
The Los Angeles County Assessor still currently estimates the square footage of the house at 975 
with two bedrooms and one bathroom.   
 
Copies of the Assessor’s building records are attached. 
 
Other Owners and Residents:  Mr. and Mrs. Webber sold their home in February 1951 to 
Harry W. and Lillian E. Gilmore. Mr. Gilmore had previously lived in Nevada where he was the 
principal of an Indian school and later in Riverside at which time he was a superintendent with 
the U. S. Indian Service.  
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In November 1952, Maurice D. and Isabel E. Buchen became the owners.  Mr. Buchen was the 
business manager of the Angelus Temple. 
 
Title was transferred to Gilbert H. and Mary L. Greene in September 1953.  Mr. Greene was 
employed as a salesman by Midway Motors.  He became sole owner in 1961.  Patricia M. 
Greene was recorded as owner in June 1997. 
 
Varand Balasanian and Zaruhi Rostomian have been the owners since August 2013.    
 
Notes:  The Webber house is a copy of a model home designed by A. Quincy Jones which had 
been built shortly before in San Diego.  The model was described as the “architect’s solution to a 
builder’s problem which proves that top-flight modern design can offer more for the money in 
the most competitive building field—the $10,000 house market.”  The San Diego house won the 
1950 Honor Award from the American Institute of Architects and was recognized by House 
Beautiful magazine as the “First House of the Year.” It was featured in the October 1950 issue of 
that periodical and also in the December 1950 issue of Architectural Forum.  The former article 
mentions that “A duplicate of this house is nearing completion at 268 Kenneth Road, Glendale, 
California.  It will be open for inspection October 15.  Interiors will also be reproduced at 
Jackson Furniture Co. in Oakland.”  
 
The house was said to give “the illusion of a much larger house…by an open plan and walls 
which are 65 per cent glass.  Each of the main rooms is extended into its own outdoor garden 
room.  The roof seems to float lightly over the house.” Use of built-ins was maximized.  Praised 
for its indigenous American look (“the owner did not disdain details of the traditional American 
idiom”), the house offered both privacy and openness to the outdoors. The two extensive 
magazine articles (copies attached) go into greater detail on construction features.   
 
Associated Building Contractors advertised the Glendale house in the November 26, 1950 and 
February 18, 1951 issues of the Los Angeles Times.  It was described as “something different”--a 
“prize winning” house that was “truly unique” and “ultra modern,” every room having its own 
patio.  Copies of these ads are attached. 
 
Significance:  The Webber house is potentially eligible for listing on a local inventory of 
significant properties, due to its association with a well-known architect, its award-winning 
design, its outstanding integrity, and the publicity that accompanied its original construction.   
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Sources:  
 City of Glendale, Building Department 
 Los Angeles County Assessor (Sylmar district office and Los Angeles archives) 
 Los Angeles Public Library 
 
 Gebhard, David and Robert Winter.  An Architectural Guidebook to Los Angeles. 
  Salt Lake City, Gibbs-Smith, 2003. 
 McAlester, Virginia and Lee.  A Field Guide to American Houses.   
  New York, Knopf, 1984. 
  
 City Directories:  1950- 
 
 Architectural Forum: December 1950 
 House Beautiful:  October 1950 
 Los Angeles Times:  November 26, 1950; February 18, 1951 
   
 Internet Resources, including California Index, California Death Index,  

Gale Biography Master Index, Ancestry.com, and Historic Los Angeles Times 
Database. 
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